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AUDIT INFORMATION 

Applicant Name: New Jersey Department of Agriculture (NJDA) 

Est. Number: N/A 

Physical Address: 369 South Warren Street, Trenton, NJ  08625 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 330, Trenton, NJ 08625 

Contact & Title: Erich Bremer, Supervisor, Organic Certification Program 

E-mail Address: Erich.bremer@ag.state.nj.us 

Phone Number: 609-984-2225 

Auditor(s): Julie Hartley, Accreditation Manager 

Program: USDA National Organic Program (NOP) 

Audit Date(s): June 25-27, 2013 

Audit Identifier: NP2142ACA 

Action Required: No 

Audit Type: Corrective Action Audit 

 

Audit Objective: 
To verify, review and approve corrective actions addressing outstanding 

noncompliances identified during the 2008 Initial Assessment and 2012 

  Audit Criteria: 7 CFR Part 205, National Organic Program, Final Rule, dated December 21, 

2000; updated March 15, 2012. 

Audit Scope: Proposed corrective actions 

 

Location(s) Audited: Desk 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

The New Jersey Department of Agriculture (NJDA) is a state government that was accredited as a 

certifying agent on April 12, 2007 to the National Organic Program (NOP) for crops, wild crops, 

livestock, and handling operations.  The NJDA Organic Certification Program currently includes 82 

operations certified to the NOP, consisting of 50 crops, 3 wild crop, 3 livestock, and 21 handlers (20 

processors and 1 distributor).  All certified operations are located in the United States in the states of 

New Jersey and Pennsylvania. 

 

Representatives of the NOP conducted an accreditation assessment of the NJDA Organic Certification 

Program from May 21-25, 2012.  On July 16, 2012, the NOP issued a Notice of Noncompliance to NJDA 

for findings from the assessment report.  NJDA submitted proposed corrective actions to the NOP on 

August 16, 2012.  The NOP requested additional information for NP2142ACA .NC1, NP2142ACA .NC2, 

and NP2142ACA .NC5 on October 25, 2012.  New Jersey provided additional information on November 

13, 2012.  On December 12, 2012, the NOP Accreditation Committee met to review NJDA’s submitted 
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corrective actions and voted to defer a recommendation on accreditation pending additional information 

on NP8217OOA.NC3, NP8217OOA.NC4, NP2142ACA.NC2, and NP2142ACA.NC5.  Additional 

corrective actions were submitted by NJDA on January 4 and January 28, 2013.  The NOP Accreditation 

Committee reviewed this information on February 27, 2013 and voted to recommend a proposed 

suspension of NJDA’s accreditation.   

 

On April 5, 2013, the NOP issued a Notice of Proposed Suspension as corrective actions submitted for the 

outstanding noncompliance NP8217OOA.NC4 and noncompliance NP2142ACA.NC5(a) were not 

sufficient to demonstrate compliance with the USDA organic regulations.  NJDA submitted proposed 

corrective actions to the NOP on April 30, 2013.  The NOP requested additional information for 

NP2142ACA.NC5(a) which were submitted by NJDA on June 20, 2013.   

 

FINDINGS 

Seven corrective actions for noncompliances identified during the 2008 Initial Assessment and 2012 

Renewal Assessment were accepted by the NOP on April 5, 2013.  Corrective actions for an outstanding 

noncompliance from the 2008 Initial Assessment and a noncompliance from the 2012 Renewal 

Assessment were reviewed by the NOP on June 25-27, 2013, and were found to be adequately addressed.  

All corrective actions will be verified during the next on-site assessment. 

 

NP8217OOA.NC3 – Accepted 

NP8217OOA.NC5 – Accepted  

NP2142ACA.NC1 – Accepted  

NP2142ACA.NC2 – Accepted  

NP2142ACA.NC3 – Accepted  

NP2142ACA.NC4 – Accepted 

NP2142ACA.NC6 – Accepted  

 

NP8217OOA.NC4 – Accepted.  NOP §205.501(a)(7) states, “A private or governmental entity 

accredited as a certifying agent under this subpart must:  Have an annual program review of its 

certification activities conducted by the certifying agent's staff, an outside auditor, or a consultant 

who has expertise to conduct such reviews and implement measures to correct any non-

compliances with the Act and the regulations in this part that are identified in the evaluation.”  

There is no procedure for conducting a program review.  An annual program review has not been 

conducted.  Corrective Action (2009):  NJDA General Procedures for Organic Certification has 

been revised to include an annual program review procedure.  The program review may be 

performed by NJDA staff or a contracted auditor.  Currently, NJDA is in the process of acquiring 

the services of a third party to complete the first internal program review.  NJDA has been 

provided with a cost estimate and plans from the third party and plans to have the audit in August 

of 2009.  Verification of Corrective Action (May 2012):  An annual program review was 

conducted by an outside party during 2009; however, no annual program review has been 

conducted since.  Corrective Action (January 2013): NJDA updated its procedures to state that 

an annual internal audit shall be conducted in accordance with USDA organic regulations.  In 

August 2012, NJDA solicited quotes from three qualified parties for internal auditing services.  

NJDA subsequently identified the contractor to be used for the upcoming internal audit; however, 

the date of the audit has yet to be determined.  NJDA staff will shadow the contractor during the 
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process in order to learn how to perform annual program reviews, with the intent of using internal 

staff to complete this task in future years.  At present, NJDA has not conducted internal program 

reviews for 2010, 2011 or 2012.  Corrective Action (April 2013): NJDA started the process of an 

internal program review using an outside auditor who conducted a desk review of documents.  An 

on-site internal program review audit was conducted in May 2013.  NJDA is training a staff 

member to conduct future internal program reviews. 

 
NP2142ACA.NC5 – Accepted.  NOP §205.402(a)(2) states, “Upon acceptance of an application for 

certification, a certifying agent must:  Determine by a review of the application materials whether the 

applicant appears to comply or may be able to comply with the applicable requirements of subpart C of 

this part.”  Two of four labels reviewed did not comply with regulatory requirements: 

a) A single ingredient product was incorrectly labeled as “95% organic,” which is not in compliance 

with §205.303(a)(2).  This percentage is not possible as it listed only a single ingredient. 

b) An “organic” product label had the “Certified organic by * * *” statement to the left of the 

distributor name, which is not in compliance with §205.303(b)(2).   

In addition, the files did not record whether the labels had been approved by NJDA.  Corrective Actions 

(January 2013):  

a) NJDA stated that the document in question was not a label but rather a shipping insert.  Because of 

this, NJDA did not consider the document a formal label for approval and did not record the process 

used to evaluate or approve it.  The program supervisor could not verify the information submitted 

by the client or explain the process used to evaluate the product composition and labeling category.  

In January 2013, NJDA told the client that the 95% label was not accurate and could not be used any 

longer, stating that “there is no label claim in the Rule for ‘95% organic.’”  However, this statement 

contradicts § 205.303 (a)(1).  

b) NJDA has reviewed NOP Policy Memo 12-2, “Placement of the Certified Organic By ***” 

Statement.  This policy was forwarded to NJDA certified clients via e-mail on September 27, 2012 

with the following instructions: “Please pay extra attention to the notice on the ‘certified organic by 

***” statement.’  This [memo] changes previous determinations, and many NJDA clients will have 

to make changes to and re-submit their labels by 2014 to be in compliance with the labeling 

requirements.”  NJDA will address labels with individual clients during the completion of the 2012 

and 2013 updates to ensure all clients’ labels are properly revised before the deadline date of January 

1, 2014. 

Corrective Action (June and July 2013):   
a)  As NJDA stated that the document in question was a shipping insert, NJDA reviewed the document 

under § 205.307 as a label for nonretail containers used for shipping and submitted it as evidence to 

show that the product was listed only as “organic.”  To facilitate the label review process, NJDA 

developed a new form to document the review process for each label and a template to track all 

labels submitted by producers; and revised its “General Procedures for NJDA Organic Certification” 

to indicate the implementation of the new documents.  NJDA also submitted agendas and 

certificates, and noted several training modules or meetings which staff attended as evidence of 

completion of organic labeling regulation reviews in order to prevent a reoccurrence of the 

noncompliance. 
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